
Pre-Meeting Agenda 
Mountain Brook City Council 

City Ha11 - Room A106 
56 Church Street 

Mountain Brook, AL 35213 
November 9,2015 6:00 PM 

1. Proposals fiom Sain Associates to improve the South Brookwood Road 
sidewalks and guardrails - Alicia Bailey of Sain Associates. ( See attached 
information. This item may be added to the formal agenda.) 

2. Early Retirement Window for eligible employees-Steve Boone (See attached 
information. This item may be added to the formal agenda.) 

3. Request by ClasTran for $200 funding from the City in FY-2016-Samantha 
St. John of ClasTran (see attached information. This item may be added to the 
formal agenda.) 

4. Parking pad encroachment request for 98 Country Club Boulevard located 
on Montevallo Road-Dana Hazen (See attached information. This item may 
be added to the formal agenda.) 

5. Birmingham Blueprint project funding-Rick Davis, Senior Vice-President, 
Birmingham Business Alliance (See attached information. This item may be 
added to the formal agenda.) 



SOUTH BROOKWOOD ROAD 
SIDEWALK OPTIONS 
Novem ber 4,2015 
City of Mountain Brook, AL 

These options and opinions of cost are based on a preliminary site review. No design or evaluation has 
been completed. 

Option 1: 
Spotted improvement of extending guardrail where existing sidewalk is close to road and replacing 
sidewalk behind the new guardrail 
Estimated opinion of probable cost - $55,000 
Pros -extension of guardrail and wider sidewalk would be installed where existing sidewalk is close to 
the road 
Cons -construction impacts drainage ditch and cut slope, loss of 5-6 car lengths for on street parking 

Option 2: 
Widen the existing sidewalk with no change to the existing guardrail, valley gutter, and grass strip 
Estimated opinion of probable cost - $70,000 
Pros -wider sidewalk, no loss of on street parking 
Cons -some areas the sidewalk gets close to the road, construction impacts drainage ditch and cut 
slope 

Option 3: 
Maintain the existing valley gutter and increase the grass strip, remove and install a wider sidewalk 
Estimated opinion of probable cost - $120,000 
Pros - wider sidewalk, increases separation between the road and sidewalk, no loss of on street parking 
Cons -construction impacts drainage ditch and cut slope 

Option 4: 
Add curb and gutter and new sidewalk 
Estimated opinion of probable cost - $145,000 
Pros -wider sidewalk, provides curb as a barrier between road and sidewalk 
Cons -construction impacts drainage ditch and cut slope, total loss of on street parking 

Option 5: 
Add curb and gutter, new sidewalk, grass strip and guardrail 
Estimated opinion of probable cost - $170,000 
Pros -wider sidewalk, provides curb as a barrier and increases separation between road and sidewalk 
Cons -construction impacts drainage ditch and cut slope, total loss of on street parking 



LEGEND 
----. E X I S T I N G  

.. 1_1.I \ - - - -  < 

*. . 
- J  

- * - . - - - - - - - - I  m 
L . - L - - - - - - - - - - -  . . . --* -  i--" - - - -  - ---. 

,--L ---- *-*--- 

EXISTING: 3 .  NEW WIDENED SIDEWALK 
M A I N T A I N  E X I S T I N G  VALLEY GUTTER 

INCREASE GRASS STRIP  \- ,a a 
.. *-*----------- *. 

L --.------ ---- . . - - -  - - - - - - - - -  *. 
I 

1 .  SPOTTED IMPROVEMENT OF 
EXTENDING GUARDRAIL AND REPLACING 
SlDEWALK I N  AREA WHERE E X I S T I N G  4. ADO CURB AND GUTTER 

SIDEWALK I S  CLOSE TO ROAD NEW SIDEWALK 

1 \ -; . - , .. -. 
- *------JJ-.p-r .----- --- - -  

,.* *.------ ----- .. . - -----------  
, . . . - --* - - - 

2. WIDEN E X I S T I N G  SIDEWALK 
MAINTA IN  E X I S T I N G  VALLEY CUTTER 5 .  ADD CURB AND GUTTER 

AND GRASS STRIP  GRASS STRIP  AND 
NEW S IDE  WALK 



To: Sam Gaston, City Manager 

CC: Meyor and members ofthc City Council 

From: Steven Bwne 

O a k  1114/2015 

Re: Retirement Window Analysis 

Background 
In 2002, the City adopted a resolution (No. 02-072) which allows retirees to continue their participation in the 
City's group medical insurance plan provided they have at least 30 years of service with thc City (any age) or at 
least 15 years ofservices if age 60 or older. Such participation is limited to the earlier date of the retiree's becoming 
eligible for Medicare benefits (whether by age or disability) or 13 years, Effective January 1,2016, the monthly 
con of such rclirec coverage will be as follows: 

city Retiree Tolal 
Family 51,141 $480 51,621 
Single $73 1 $150 $88 1 

Generally annually, the City Council considers extending this benefit to other employees with 20 years of service 
(any age) or I0 years of service if age 60 or alder. The last such resolution was adopted October 13,2014 (2014- 
136) which opened tho rctircmmt window fiom January 1,2015 through August 1,2015. Recently, two employees 
have expressed interest in retiring provided they can secure access to the City's group medical insurance plan. 

The net cost (saving) to tho City results h m  the rcplacemcnl oflhc retiring employee ultimately with an entry 
level employee aAer considering the various internal promotions. Those retiring arc generally receiving tho 
maximum annual longevity compensation whereas their replacements aro not eligible for longevity compensation 
for six (6) years. Longevity compensation starts at 1.112% of annual compensation (beforc applying the annual cap) 
and increases at the rate of 112% annually over the ensuing 20 years before attaining the maximum amount of 8- 
1R% of annual compensation (again, before applying the annual cap). Following is an illustration of the annual 
savings for one police officer with family medical coversge carrying said coveritge for the maximum duration of 13 
years: 

Year Premium 
I S 12,108 

(Savings) 
lGl7. 557,3M(B SKW10Hll 

($3,400) 

Nel 
SnlarylSenefit 

(Savings) Annual 
stcp 10.1 0 6 5 ~  65.~1 (Savin~s) 

(524,000) (S 15,292) 
($2 1,700) ( 12,992) 
(1 9,400) ( 10,692) 
(17,0001 (8,292) 
(14,400) (5,692) 
(1 1,800) (2,s 17) 



November 4,2015 

Longevity/ Net 
Net Retiree Benefit SalarylBenclIt 

Medical (Savings) (Savings) Annual 
Year Premium WIT S ~ ~ S W ~ ~ H M ? M M  slrp la I n.65?+9 61%) (Savings) 

7 t 2,iOB (2,600) (9,100) 408 

Note: The above illustration (a police oficer) represents a conservotivc analysis of the 
aggregate savings over a 13 year period. The annual savings increases for higher 
rankinglcompensatcd employees. Additionally, the aggregate savings increases for 
employees over the age of  52 who elect to retire as their participation in the gmup 
medical insurance plan will not last for 13 years. 

The above analysis takes into consideration only the annual cost (savings) from the retiring employee and their 
replacement. Beginning in 2008, the City was required to account for retirees' medical coverage in a manner similar 
it's accounting For the pension plan (namely a footnote to the annual audited financial statements). Thc City now 
"accrues" a porlion of the retirees' medical cost over the life oftheir employment (normal cost) and amortizes the 
unfunded liability over 30 years. Attached are the Other Post-Employment Bcncfits (OPEB) balance sheet, income 
smtcment, and Note 7 h m  the 2014 audit report hrthcr describing the City's retiree medical insurance program. 

In spite of the 52.4 million unfunded liability for retiree medical cost, in my opinion, the City's policy ofaHowing 
its retirees to continue their participation in the City's group medical plan is  justified for the following masons: 

I. Employee morale by a) increasing promotional opportunities and b) allowing employees emotionally 
ready for retirement the opportunity to do so 

2. Reduces workers' compensation cxposurc wpccially in the more labor intensive positions 



Clty ol  Mountaln Brook. Alabama 

Notes to Flrundal SWnmmts 

UAAL to 
Covarod Covemd 
Payrofl Payroll 

6 0 s  does nol explicitly Incorporate Ihe pdan~al erfects of le&l o; conlraclual funding ltrnll 

7. Post-ernptoyment bmenls 
Plan Doscriptlon. The Cdy or Mountain Brook's medical benefits are provided lo employees upon adual 
rsUrsmsnl through paMpatkn in the Local Government Health Insurance Plan (LGHIP) administered by the 
Stale Employees' Insurance Baard (SEIB). 

The employer pays a porrion 01 the rnrdicd coverage for Ute retireas and dependents tor a marlmum of lhlrtwn 
years aRer reiiramnl or. If sarliw, until the altelnmenl of Medicare ~IigiMAty. The earlkt retiremen1 sligibllily 
pmvislans are as fdlows: 25 years of ~ n r l c e  at any age; or. age 60 and 10 years of sewice (called Tier t 
members). Employees hlred on and after January 1,2013 (aged T s r  II' members) arm ellglble to retire only afler 
anainmenl of age 62 (age 56 tor pollee and firetlghlen) or later mrnpletlon of 25 years d service. 

ConWbutlon Rales. Employees do not mlribula lo Wir post employment benefits costs unlii lhey beame 
retirees and begln receiving lhose bmneEb. The plan provisfons and aintribulion rales am arnlained In the ofiidal 
plan documents 

Fund Policy. Until 2006, (he City 01 Mounlah Bmdc recognized the cosl of providing post-employment msdlcal 
benefds (ihe City of Mmtain B W s  prilon of the Wiree medical benefit premiums) as an expense when lhe 
benefit premiums wars due and thus r tneed the cost of the posl+mploymant bemafils on a p a y - a s - y o ~  basis 
In 2014 2013. the Cily of Mountain Braak's porlron or health care funding a351 lor retired employees totaled 
5359,756 and 5350,923. mspectively. 

Efleciive Odober t+ 2006. ihe City 01 Mounlain Brook lmplsmanted Government AturunUng Slandards Board 
Statement Number 45. Aecwntfng and Flnandal Reporting by Employers for Post ampbymnt Benefits O M r  
U~an Panskns (GASB 45). This amounl was appted toward the Net OPE8 Benelil OMigaUon as shown in the 
lollowing t a b .  

Annual Requlmd Contribution. The City of Mounlain Brook's Annual Requiad Contribulbn (ARC) is an amount 
actuarlally determlned In accdanw wlth GASB 45. The ARC is the sum of the Normal Casl plus Vw conlributkn 
lo amortize the Unfunded Acluarlal Accrued LbbIrity (UAAL). A level ddlar. open anwlkalion period of 30 years 
(the m a h u m  amortizaUon perlod allowed by GASB 43145) hss been used for the post.empbyment benefits. The 
adwrlally mmpuled ARC is as lollows 

Normal Cost 
=year VAL amorikatbn amount 

Annual required wnlibulion (ARC) 

Net Post-rmploymrnt Benefit Obllgatlon (Asret). The laMe bebw shows the City of Mountain Bmok's Net 
Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) ObligaUon lot fiscal years endhg September 30: 



Boginnlng Net OPEB ObllgaUon (Assel) 

Annual requlred eonlribuUon 
Inleresl on Nel OPEB Obllqatlon (Assel) 
ARC Adiustrnent 
OPEB Cost 
Contribution 
Cunent year reliree premium 
Change In Nsl OPEB Obliealtor 

Ending Net OPEB ObllgaUon IAssel) 

Fundsd Slalua and Fundlng Pmgmss. h lhe fiscal year entling September 30. 2014 and 2013. Ule Clly of 
Mountain Bmok wnlribuled 53M.000 and $320.000. respetlively. ID h post-employmmt bonelib plan over end 
above the relhe premium cork The plan m i  acerued inlemst and unmallred gainsllosses, lhus had assets of 
51.571.336 and 51,260,448 as a! Seplember 30. 2014 a d  2013. respedhrely. Based on Vle Oclober 1.2013 
actuarial valuation. the mast mcenl valuation. the Aclwdal Accrued LbbUily ( M L )  at the end of the year 
Seplember 30,2014 was 53,992,253 whkh Is defined as bat porllon. es deladned by a parlidar aduadal eosl 
rnaUlod (Ule City ol Mounlatn Bmk vsss h e  Projaclad Unil Credit Cost Method), of h e  aduarial present value of 
post employment plan be+mfits and erpensss whlch k nol pmvidad by normal cost. 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Aduarle! Aetuarlal Llablllty 
Valuation Value 01 (AAL) 

Dalo Assuts -Entry age 
Sttptembmr 30 (a) (b) A 

2014 1.571336 3,992.253 

Ratlo of 
UAAL to 

Funded Covered Covered 
Pa roll Payroll 

4 )  I'rl W*),c) 
39.36% 14,511,281 16.68% 

The requited schmlula of fundlng progress immediately folpwlng Ihe notes IP the r i n d a l  slaternenls pmsents 
muniyeer trend inbrmatlon about whether Ihe aduarlal ~ l u e  01 plan assels Is hcmasing or decresshg over Ume 
relative lo Ihe aduarial acwed tiabl!lly for benens. The proj%cfion of benefils for f i ~ n d a l  npoIling purposes 
does rml exUdUy Incorporalo the polentlal e L d s  ol legal or conlradual funding hltations. 

Actuarial Methods and AssumpUo~. Advadal valuations lnvolva eslimates of Ihe vabe of reporled amwnb 
and asswnptions about the pmbablbly al  even& far Into the fulurs, The actwrbl valwUon fw posl ernploymenl 
benefits Indudes estlmabs and assumplions ragarcling (9) lurnovar me, (2) rellrement nle; (3) heatlh care cost 
trend nte: (4) marlality nla: (5) dirmunl m k  (lnveslment mlum a~sumption); and (6) Ih period to which the 
costs apply (pad. cumenl, or tuture years of service by ernplopeo). Acluarblly delemdned amounts are mqed to 
mnthual mvislon as actual results are compared lo pas! expectallons and new estimates am made aboul the 
future 

The acluerlal slculallons are based on lhe lypes of benefits provided under Ihe terms o! the substanlive plan (the 
plan as rmderslwd by Re City 01 Mmlain Brook and Its empkyee plan rnembenj al the h e  ol lhe valuabn and 
on the pattern of sharlng c~s ls  beheen the CUy of Mountafn Bmk  and 11s plan memben lo that point, The 
pmjeclian of benefib rot rnaneial reporling purposes does not explidW Inwrporah h e  potenUJ eHeds o l  legal or 
canIradual lundlng lirnitabns on lhe pattern or cost shadng b e h e n  the City of MounMn Bmok and plan 
members in Ule futve. ConsIslent with the longlerm wrspectlve or actuarial calurtalions, Re actuarial methods 
and aS!WftplbnS used indude leehnlques that em designed lo d u w  shorblerm voleUMy in aaduarlel UabPillas 
end the actuarial value of assets 

Aduarbl Coat Method. fha ARC b detmhad uslng Ihe Projected Unil Cmdil C w l  Method, The employer 
portbn ol the cast lor mtirtw medical care br eadr future year Is delermlned by pmjedlng the wrmnt cost levels 
using the healthcam cost lmnd rale and dismunting lhls pmjaetsd a w n 1  lo the valuation dale d n g  lhe other 
desvibad perllnsnl actuakl assurnptlonr. Including Iha invastrnenl mlurn assumption (dhwunt nte). morlality 
and lumwer. 



Clty of Mounlah Brook, Alrrbama 

Actuarial Valw of Plan Asssb. Because of the nature of the Inveslmenls In ttw Inrst. m have used actual 
market value as Ihe acluarhl value of assals. II is anUJpaled that h future valwlbns, should morc vdala 
lnvedmanb be used, a smoothed markel valw mnslslenl wHh Actuarial Standards Board Aduerial Slandards of 
Pradlce Number 6 (ASOP 6), as pmvided in patagmph numbcr 125 ol GASB Statement45 would be usud. 

Turnovar Rale. An age-refaled turnover swla based on actual experience has been used. The ntes, when 
applied lo the adive employw census, pmduw a mmpodle average annual turnover of appmximaldy 10%. 

Pwlamptoymont Benefit Plan Ellgtblllty Roquimmenla. H has barn assunwd that enlitlemenl lo benulls will 
mmmenm hme ysan aAer the aaffiest elgibltity for retiremnl. Because of Ihe vadatiana In eligibility described 
under 'Plan DssuipUon' above. eligibility lor reUremenl has been assumed Lo be the earlier oE (I), attolnmenl 01 
age 60 wllh a1 least fineen (t5) ysan ol service. and (Z), ampletion of thlrty (30) years of sarviw at any age 
EnUllernent to bonefib cassas upon Ihe earlier or Vllrieen years after reliremenl and tha dale the retiree becomes 
sliglbls lor Medtdlcara benefits (wheVler by age or disability). Medlcal bsnafits are provided to employees upon 
adual telimrnanl 

Inveslmml Return Assumption (Dlscounl Rate). GASB Stalernent 45 states lhat the investment relum 
assumphn should be Uie esfimaled long-term inveslnenl yield on Ihe investments that am expecled lo be used 
lo finanes the payment of benefits. Slnee ttw ARC Is currently being funded and Invested wilh relatively 
wnse~allve investments. we have perlormed thls val~Uon ushg a 4% annual investment return assumplion. 

Health Care Cast Tmnd Rato. The expected Tale of lnwaase in medical cost Is based on a gredad schedule 
beginning with 0% annwlty. dawn Io an ultimate annwl n le  of 5.0% for len yean out and later. 

Momllty Ratr. The 1994 Gmup AMulty RastNing (94GAR) Isbte, projected lo 2002, based on E fixed bbnd or 
50% of Ule unloaded male momlily tale and 50% of tha urbaded fernah mortality rates, was used. 1% is a 
pubfished mortality table which was designed lo  ba used In dslerminlng tha value of acwsd benalits Ln delinsd 
beneht penslon plans Projected lulure morlal~ly imptavernant has no1 been used since il is w opinion lhal Lhls 
tabla wnbins suft&ntly conservative margin for the populabn Involved In Ihk valuation. 

Mmthod of Oetennlntng Value of Benanta. The "value ol benefits' has been assumed to be L e  partion of ha 
premium a h  retiremen1 date expecled to be pald by !he employer for each retiree and has been used as Lhe 
basis for talarlaling We actuarial presenl value of OPE0 benefits lo ba pald. We ham used lhe 'unMandedM tales 
provided ac r6quba-d by GASB 45 for MIuation purposes 

Inflalion Rab. Indudad In both the lnvaslmenl Return Assumptian and Ihe Healthcars Cost tmnd rates above 1s 
an implldl Inlbllon assumpllon of 2.50% annually. 

Projected Salary Incnases. This asumpUon is not applicable since nailher the banelil slrudure nw the 
valuakn melhoddagy Involves salary. 



Clty of Mounbln Brook Alabama 

Nairs to Flrunelal Stalenuntz 

Posl.retlremant Bansfll Increases. The plan knel i l  provisions in e h d  b r  retirees as of the valualion date 
have been usad and it has been assumed for valualiin purposes lhal lhere wfll not be any changes in the fulure. 

W o w  Is a summary of OPEB cost and contributions far the bst lhraa Peat calendar yean. 

Contribulions 
ReUm premlum 

Total contribution and pmrnlurn 

Change In net OPEB obligalbn 

Ratb of mnlrlbulions lo cost 

Rat i  oC conlrlbullons plus premhn to cost 

Commltmants m d  contlngmcles 
bounty Lomrusslon b r  shared wrvims. The assess men^ 

s charged lo the City during 2014 and 2013 worm as follows: / 

ny. In=, lo prnvlda far tha 
sarvlce lor the year ended 
dts and 538.18 per month 
ended Seplember 30. 2014 

rbage service fee revenues 
ber 30.2014 and 2013 wera 

d Inlo an agreemenl whereby U1e CHy, along 

al lolaled appmrlrnalely 51,050.000. In eonjunclion wih the 

(-J 
I... ' ...'.%'. 



P.O. Box 10386, Birmingham, AL 35202-0386 
Phone (205) 325-8787 Fax (205) 325-8788 

Cet~tlwl Alcfbcrmcr 's Specialized Ttwt~sif 
A Pl-oject of the Bil-rnirrgbam Regional Pcirat~*ci~zsit Cotzsor-ti~in~ 

November 3,2015 

Mr. Gaston, 

Thank you for taking the time to visit with me today about Clastran's funding request of $200 for the 
year of FY 2015-16. 

I have included some materials for your inspection of Clastran's Rider's Guide and Handbook as well as 
an application form. Clients just need to be over 60 years old or have a handicap to ride our buses. Each 
bus is  equipped with a lift to accommodate a wheelchair. Our service is curb to curb with a subsidized 
fee of $4.00 each way and we offer this service Monday through Friday from 7 a.m. to 5 p.m. Typically 
riders use our service to attend senior centers in Jefferson County, go to medical appointments, dialysis, 
physical therapy, employment or shopping. We transport folks in your area to Brookwood mall, 
Brookwood Hospital, The Botanical Garden, Western Supermarket and many surrounding businesses. 
There are some riders who are employed in Mountain Brook village who use Clastran's service every 
week. 

I have enclosed a report from the immediate past year ending September 30,2015 showing 36 rides in 
the City of Mountain Brook although with the aging Baby Boomer population we expect that number to 
increase. Generally riders come from the low income population; however your donation would be 
maximized since our Federal Grant is an 80120 basis so each $100 donation brings down an additional 
$400 from the Federal 5310 Transportation grant reserved for Jefferson County in Washington, D. C. 

We hope that your City Council will consider this request in order to help those in our community who 
rely on Clastran for their transportation needs. 

We would appreciate a few minutes at the next Pre-council meeting to answer questions and make a 
short presentation about Clastran and answer any questions, 

Thank you. 

Samantha St. John 

Clastran CFO 

"Developing Partnerships to Meet the Challenge" 



P.O. Box 10386, Birmingham, AL 35202-0386 
Phone (205) 325-8787 Fax (205) 325-8788 

Central Alabama's Specializsd Transit 

I - A Pmject of the Birmingham Regional Paratransit Consortrrtrurn 

August 31,2015 

Mayor Lawrence Terry Odm 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL, 352 13 

Re: ClasTran 201 6 Local Match 

Dear Mayor Oden, 

ClasTran is projected to complete 128,371 trips fiom October 2014 to September 2015 
for the elderly, disabled, and rural citizens of Jefferson County. Services consist of 
doctor's appointments, dialysis treatments, travel to adult daycare facilities, and other 
essential services. We are requesting $200.00 in local match funding from your city. We 
would use this with other matching funds ftom Jefferson County to provide service using 
ClasTran buses to your city and the surrounding area. 

HistoricalIy, the primary source of local funding has been the Jefferson County 
Commission. We are not sure what hding Jefferson County will be able to provide to 
ClasTran for 20 15-201 6. Funding from Jefferson County municipalities will.be required 
to conhue providing trips in cities that are currently being served by ClasTran routes. 

If possible CIasTran would like to receive a local match commitmentin writing by 
September 30,2015. We hope that you and the City Council will favbdly  consider this 
request. Our elderly and disabled citizens rely on this service every day, 

If you have my questions, please feel free to call me at 205-325-8787 0r.e-mail me at 
fchurch~,clastran.com. 

Executive Director 

"Developing Partnerships to Meet the Challenge" 



MOUNTAIN BRK MEDICAL 1 1 2 ---- -- 
MOUNTAIN BRK Total 1 1 
MOUNTAlN BROOK MEDICAL 1 1 16 1) 1 1 2 13 

PERSONAL 20 20 -------- 
PHYS THRPY 1 -------- ----- 

MOUNTAIN BROOK 
Total 



Who k Eligible to Ride? 

In the urbanized areas of lefferson and Shelby 
counties. people are eligible to ride if they are 
age 60 and over or if they are disabled. An 
application must be filled out l o  determine 
eligibiltty. 

In Walker County and the rural areas of 
Jefferson and Shelby counties, anyone can ride. 

How Do I kheduk a R k k ?  

Call (205) 325-8787 or (877) 826-7876 Monday 
through Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.m. 
and 500 p.m. You may leave a votcemail 
message if calling after hours or on weekends. 

ReSe~al lon~ can be made a maxlmum of 14 
days in advance. Reservations for next day 
service MUST be made by 11:OO a.m. Same 
day service 1s not provided and all reservations 
are based on availability. 

Whi 

first and last name of rider 
Oateof trip 
Address and phone number of pick-up 

w Address of drop-off location 
Requested arrival timelappointment time 

w Requested return time. if return trip 
w Notify if you will be using a wheelchair 

andlor traveling with a personal care 
attendant or service animal 

- -  - -  - - - - > . - - 
HOW Do 1 C a d  a.ReserW 

You musk call (205) 325-8787 or 
(877)826-7876 two hours before your 
~hedu led  pick-up time l o  cancel a trip. 

What is My PIckYp/Drop-OfF The? 

Every attempt is made to pick up as dose to 
the scheduled time as possible. The vehicle 
may arrive from 15 minutes before your 
scheduled pick-up time to 15 minutes after 
your scheduled prck-up time. Please be ready 
at least 15 minutes before the scheduled pick, 
up ttme. the driver can stay on schedule. If 
the vehicle ha% not arrived by 15 minutes aher 
your scheduled time, call ClasTran to report the 
fituation and recetve further aswtance. 

. .  - .  

How long Will &Take to Get There? 

All service is shared ride. TMs means there 
may be other people on the vehicle with you. 
The driver may stop to pick up or drop off 
other people on the way to your destination. 
This may cause delays. Your patience ir appre- 
ciated, 

- - -. 
May 1 M n g  My Pet? 

RLders may travel with a service animal. bur 
pets will not be transported. When calling to 
make a reservation, please advise if you wl:l be 
aceompanled by a service animal. 

A 

c a? 
2 %  
I- r;.', fngc 
m E 
G2; 

May 2070 

Rider's Guide 

ClasTran is a shared-ride. curb-to-curb 
public transportation sewice 

Clastran 
PO Box 10386 

Birmingham, AL 35202.0386 
Phone: 205-325-6787 
TDD: 205-325-8129 
www.clastran,corn 



- . - - . - . 

May 1 Bring a 

A car seat or booster seat must be used for any 
child under six years d age. Aear-facing car 
seats are recommended until the child u m e  
year old or 20 pounds. Forward-facing car 
seats should be used until the child is five years 
old or weighs 40 pounds. Alabama law 
requires children to ride in booster seals until 
reachrng SIX years of age. 

ClasTran does not provide child safety wats. 
Drivers are not permitted to  secure child safety 
seats. It is the responsibility of the rider to 
provide and secure the safety seat. When 
calling to make a reservation, please advise +f 
you will be ridfng with a child. All children win 
be charged full fare. 

..... - ... .... 
I 

MayliRriw.a Companion? 

A rider may travel with one companion for the 
same fare as the rider. A cornpanton is not a 
personal care attendant. A companion travels 
with the rider for company. not for assistance, 
When calling to make a reservation, please 
advise if you will be riding with a companion. 

. . .  .% . . .  .-.". .. 
May I Brfng a P m l  Care Attendant? 

A Personal Care Attendant (PCA) is someone 
who assists the rider with mobility. A PCA will 
be allowed to ride without charge when 
accompanying the eligible individual to  or from 
the same origin and destination. A PCA and a 
fare-paying companion may both travel with 
you on the same trlp. When calling to make a 
reservation, please advise if you will be riding 
with a PCA. 

May I Ride With Medical Equipment? 

Riders may bring a respirator, portable oxygen, 
and/or other medical equipment as long as i t  
does not vlolate laws or rules related to trans- 
portation of hazardws materials. Equipment 
must be small enough to fit in the vehicle and 
be fully secured durlng transport. 

Can You Transport My Wheekhair? 

All vehid- equipped with lifts or ramps meet 
specificat~ons under the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990. They will accommo- 
date mobility devices up ta 48' X 30" with a 
maximum weight of 600 pounds when 
occupied. ClasTran cannot transport mobility 
devices that exceed these standards. 

Please be aware that a r i deh  safety cannot be 
guaranteed if riders chwse to remain seated in 
three-wheeled scooters or rolling walken with 
a seat during transport. 

How Is the Fare Collected? 

Fares will be collected by the driver at the 
beginning of the trip. Any combination of cash. 
check, money order, or ClasTran ticket will be 
accepted. Correct fare must be provided to  the 
driver. Drivers do not make change. All riders 
will receive a receipt from the driver if paying 
by cash. check. or money order. Medicaid 
vouchers are not accepted. ClasTran charges a 
$25 service fee for all returned checks. 

. . .  

Where Can I Purchasellcket 

By Mall 
PO 80x 10386 

Birmingham, At 35202 

In Person 
2121 Rev. Abraham Woods, Jr. Blvd. 

Suite 1100 
Birmingham, AL 35203 

Where Can 1 Get More Informatbn? 

Please visit Ciasfran's website at 
www.clastmn.com for more information. An 
application is available for those in the 
Jeffersonlshelby CounQ urbanized areas and 
an information sheet is available for those in 
rural areas. 

Or you may call ClasTran between 8:00 a.m. 
and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday at: 

Phone; 205-325-8787 
TOO: 205-325-8129 
Toll Free: 877-826-7876 
Emaik aweary@clastran.com 

Service is not offered on the following holidays: 

New Year's Day 
Martin Luther King Day 

Memorial Day 
Independence Day 

Labor Day 
Thanksgiving Day 

Christmas Day 

. . . .  
kfiersun and Shelby Demand Re~panse 

Th~s is a shared use curb-to-curb service that 
ooerates in reswnse to advance mervalion. A 
vihicle is schebuled to pick up the passenger 
and transport lo the desired deslinatlon 

Hours Fare 
Monday through Friday $4.00 one-way 
7:W a.m. - 5:00 p.m.* $8.00 round trip 

'Riders witl arrive at their final destination by 
this time 

Walker County Dev&ted Fixed Routes 

In addition l o  boarding the bus at specified 
stops. the bus witl deviate from the route to  
pick up passengers who are located within X 
mile of the route and are unable to get to the 
bus stop. 

County Routes 

Monday++..-.-.-.-..,.- -.---,,----,- Sipsey/Sumiton 
Tuesday ......,........ ..,..... . Cordova/Sumiton/Dora 
Wednesday ................................ Parrish/Oakman 
Thursday .............................. Nauvoo/Carbon Hifl 

Hours Fare 
Monday through Thursday $4.00 one-way 

7:30 a.m. - 2:30 p.m.* $8.00 round trip 

*Riders will arrive at their final destinatian by 
this time. All routes connect to Jasper. 

sty of Jasper 

Hours Fare 
Monday through Frlday $.Soone-way trip 
6:30 a.m. - 6:30 p.m. $10 annual pass 

Amerbns with DisaMlitles Act 
All vehicles are lift-equipped 
All stops are announced by the driver 

Fare Is $1.00 for a one-way trip. 
Annual passes are not available for paratransit. 



Funded in part by: FTA, ALDO'I; Jefetson County, 

Shelby Coun& Walker County, Walker Aea C o M p  

Foundation, me Cip of Bimthgham, UCR ARC and 

vanbus Munic@alities 

I June 2015 

b 
Now Accepting 

Rider's Handbook 

ClasTran 
PO Box 10386 

Birmingham, AL 35202-0386 
Phone: 205-325-8787 

Toll Free: 1-877-826-7876 
TDD: 205-325-8129 

"Developing Partnerships to Meet the Challenge" 



Introduction ............................................................................. 1 
.................................. ................... Conduct on Vehicles ... 2 

........................................... Jefferson and Shelby Counties 3 
...................................................................... Fare Collection 3 

......................................................................... Walker County 4 
Holidays .................................................................................. 5 

..................................................................... Purchase Tickets 5 
. Scheduling a Ride ................................................................. 6 

................... .......................... Cancelling a Reservation .... 6 
.................................................................................... Children 7 

I Medical Equipment .................................................................. 7 

Pick-up and Drop-off ............................................................... 8 

..................................................... No-ShowlLate Cancellation 8 

............................................................................. Companions 9 

Personal Care Attendant.. ...................................................... .9 

Service Animals ............ ... .................................................. 9 
.......................... ................................................. Packages ... 9 

Wheelchairs ............................................................................ 10 
Subscription Trips .................................................................. 10 

Rider Responsibilities ........................................................ 11 

Driver Responsibilities ........................................................... 12 

Drivers Are Not Permitted To .............................................. 13 

Causes for Suspension of Service ...................................... 14 

Suspension Process ............................................................ 15 

....................................................... . Appealing a Suspension 16 

Comments .............................................................................. 16 

Complaint Procedures ....................... ... .......... ..""................... ................... 17 
-A - .. . - 

Page i 
n 

.**i 
q.,:,:; 
, - <7,.; 
'! :,: . . . . .  . . + - 

,La, ; 1- .I .F 

. ,. 

. . . . 
; .:. . 

( '.'&$ 

I % *  

9 
. ,I-. 

; . \; 
4 -  ., .' 

,- - . w  
,; 7 ;- 

. . 443 1 ,- - 
+! - :  

. - 
-*.. L, 

? :-. . 
. '  .J- 

-1 .'. :: . :z. 
. . 

+;, 
9 . - .  

. . _,  
' a  . 

w 
u >  :. 

- ?-.. 

r . -  

7.' 

.,-3i;-: c@i 
tt 
. . 
. . -  

Li, 



Page 1 
. . . . .  - . . - -  - 

INTRODUCTION 
This Handbook informs riders of the policies and procedures 

established by ClasTran to provide safe and efficient 

transportation services. 

In Jefferson and Shelby counties, ClasTran provides curb- 

to-curb demand-response service. It is the responsibility of 

the rider to arrange for assistance from curb to door, if . 

needed. 

All service is shared ride. This means there may be other 

people on the vehicle with you. The driver may stop to 

pick up or drop off other people on the way to your 

destination. This may cause delays and your patience is 

appreciated. 

Please visit ClasTran's website at www.clastran.com for 

more information. An application is available for riders in 

the JeffersonlShelby County urbanized areas and an 

information sheet is available for riders in the rural areas of 

JeffersonlShelby and all of Walker County. 

You may contact ClasTran between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m. Monday through Friday at: 

Phone: 205-325-8787 

TDD : 205-325-81 29 

Toll Free: 877-826-7876 

Email: aweary@clastran.com 

U.S. Mail: PO Box 10386 

Birmingham, AL 35202-0386 

This Handbook is available in audio format upon request. 

.---- .- . . - - __* 

Page 2 

- .  . . :  ,. --..- .-,. -.--- - 

L 

CONDUCT ON VEHICLES I . . 1  

The following is never allowed when riding on ClasTran 

vehicles: I . I I 
Smoking 

Inappropriate displays of affection or sexual advances 

Eating or drinking on board unless medically necessary 

Riding under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs 

Littering 

Profanity 

Playing radios or other devices without the use of 

headphones 

Threats of physical harm to self or others 

Verbal, nonverbal, or physical harassment 

Unauthorized use or willful damage to vehicle or 

equipment 

Refusing to abide by Alabama State law regarding 

seatbelt usage 

Criminal conduct defined in andlor prohibited by the 

Alabama Penal Code 

NOTE: Repeated violation of these rules may result in 

permanent discontinuation of service. 

1,: , 
..: . - C ( . '  - .- 

::A'- - - -1 .ST: 
' P I  

7 :  

.. . 
L ,' ,. . '3  "-32, 

4 < ,  

:- ', 

. .' 

,, . 
- L 

, . , . .  
' ' 1 ' '  

Q ,  

, ,; &$,' j 
. . 

. ,  . L ' ,  
> I . - .  . . . ., .c . ' . 

b: .: 'b' 
, , 

. . 
% . .. . - .  

, ' . , . '.q . i'\ ll~, * 



Page 3 

1 k>j ' ,y; i :  1 
rm: JEFFERSON AND SHELBY COUNTIES 

Demand Response Service 

This is a shared use curb-to-curb service that operates in 

response to advance reservation. A vehicle is scheduled to 

t.pE:~-'l '4 .. pick up the passenger and transport to the desired destina- 

tion. 

Hours 

Monday through Friday 

7:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.* 

t .;'I,'. 1 - - *Riders will arrive at their final destination by this time. 

Fare 

$4.00 one-way trip 

$8.00 round trip 

FARE COLLECTION 

Fares will be collected by the driver at the beginning of the 

trip. Any combination of cash, check, money order, or 

ClasTran ticket will be accepted. Correct fare must be 

provided to the driver. Drlvers do not make change. All 

riders will receive a receipt from the driver if paying by 

cash, check, or money order. Medicaid vouchers are not 

accepted. ClasTran charges a $25 service fee for all 

returned checks. All checks and money orders must be 

made payable to ClasTran. ' . 
.Now accepting Visa and Mastercard ticket purchases 

within the ClasTran office in person or by phone. There 

, will be a 2% service fee added for all creditldebit card 

........ --T,-J--- -3" 

- .. 

Page 4 

. . . r . 4 . + 7 ~ - .  - ,  -7 . .  n 
. ,'. 

. ., C .  

WALKER COUNN ..I 
I .. 

In addition to boarding the bus at specified stops, the bus 

. will deviate from the route to pick up passengers who are 

located within ?4 mile of the route and are unable to get to 

the bus stop. Please call ClasTran at least 24 hours in 

advance to make a resenration: 877-826-7876. 

County Routes 

Monday ................................... SipseyISumiton 

I Tuesday ....................... CordovalSumitonlDora 
I 

Wednesday ............................. ParrishlOakman 

Thursday ........................... NauvoolCarbon Hill 

All county routes connect to the City of Jasper route. 

I Hours  are' 
Monday through Thursday $4.00 one way 

7:30 a.m. - 2:30 p.m. $8.00 round trip 

City of Jasper 

Hours Fare 
Monday through Friday $.50 one-way trip' 

6:30 a.m. - 6:30 p.m. $10 annual pass2 

I Americans with Disabilities Act ll I 
I - All vehicles are lift-equipped 11. 1 

All stops are announced by the driver 

Passengers using route deviation: Fare is $1 .OO for a one- 
way trip. Annual passes are not available. 

'Please refer to Fare Collection (p.3) and Purchase Tickets 

(p.5) 2~ontact ClasTran for information on purchasing an 

annual pass . ] 
.&3& 



Page 5 

- =- -. 
. -. 

HOLIDAYS 
Service is not offered on the following holidays: 

p"$x; 1 New Year's Day 

Martin Luther King Day 

Memorial Day 

Independence Day 

Labor Day 

Thanksgiving Day 

Christmas Day 
NOTE: Only dialysis trips are provided on holidays, but 

trlps are provided on Thanksgiving Day or Chrtstmas 

PURCHASE TICKETS 
By U.S. Mall 

ClasTran 

PO Box 10386 

Birmingham, A1 35202-0356 

In Parson 
(mail is not received at this location) 

2121 Rev. Abraham Woods, Jr. Blvd. 

Suite 1100 

Birmingham, AL 35203 

By Phone 

(205) 325-8787 

no 

Day. 

Page 6 

-- ..-A,- --- -----> 
. .  . 

SCHEDULING A RIDE 
Call (205) 325-8787 or (877) 826-7876 Monday through 
Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 500 p.m. You 1. - !'.'! ,- 1 
may leave a voicemail message if calling after hours or on I , ! : I  
weekends. 

Resenrations can be made a maximum of 14 days in 
advance. Reservations for next day service MUST be 

-made by 11:OO a.m. Same day service is not provided and 

all reservations are based on availability. 

You will need to have the following information ready when 

you call: 

First and last name of rider 

Date of trip 

Address and phone number of pick-up location 
'-2 .- : .%. 

; Address and phone number of drop-off location 1 - 1  
Requested arrival timelappointment time I I 
.Requested return time, if return trip I .:.I 
Notify if you will be using a wheelchair andlor traveling 

with a personal care attendant, companion, or service f 4,  >. . 

animal 

Occasionally a dispatcher may ask you to change your 

requested appointment date andlor time in order to 

accommodate your request. 

' NOTE: Personal trips cannot be made in conjunctions with 

agency trips. 

CANCELLING A RESERVATION 

You must call (205) 325-8787 or (877) 826-7876 two hours I . I 
before your scheduled pick-up time to cancel a trip. 

. ... . . - 

. . 
I. 

9 - W J  

. >  
. . - 



Page 7 

!-- - - -- 
CHILDREN 

1 nzl-L 3% a '- a .  1 Children under 12 years of age must be accompanied by 
an adult. Children 12 and over may travel alone, on a 

case-by-case basis. 

A car seat or booster seat must be used for any child 

under six years of age. Rear-facing car seats are 

children to ride in booster seats until reaching six years of 

age. 

ClasTran does not provide child safety seats and drivers 

are not permitted to secure child safety seats. It is the 
responsibility of the rider to provide and secure the safety 

seat. AD children must be secured in an appropriate device 

or seatbelt while the vehicle is in motion. 

When calling to make a reservation, please advise if you 

will be riding with a child. All children will be charged the 

same fare as the rider. 

MEDICAL EQUIPMENT 
Riders may bring a respirator, portable oxygen, andlor other 

medical equipment as long as it does not violate laws or 

rules related to transportation of hazardous materials. 

Equipment must be small enough to fit in the vehicle and 

recommended until the child is one year old or 20 pounds. 
Forward-facing car seats should be used until the child is . 

five years old or weighs 40 pounds. Alabama law requires 
. 

Page 8 

. , x7. - . -  

' *.:.?. - - 
I. . 

' -; .! 
.+ - 

. ?1'. . 
.' . . . . ..-, , 

PICK-UP AND DROP-OFF 
Every attempt is made to pick up as close to the scheduled 
time as possible. The vehicle may arrive from 15 minutes 

before your scheduled pick-up time to 15 minutes after your 
scheduled pick-up time. Please be ready at least 15 

minutes before the scheduled pick-up time, so the driver 

can stay on schedule. I f .  the vehicle has not arrived by 15 

minutes after your scheduled time, call ClasTran to report 
the situation and receive further assistance. Riders do not 

have to board the vehicle beforelafter the scheduled 30- 

minute pick-up window. 

You should call ClasTran if you will be late. If you cannot 

be located within 5 minutes of scheduled pick-up, a 

dispatcher will attempt to call you. If you still cannot be 

located, the driver will be instructed to proceed with hislher 

schedule. 

NO-SHOW~LATE CANCELLATION 
Riders will be considered a no-showllate cancellation if: 

A trip is not cancelled at least hnro hours before the 

scheduled pick-up time 

The rider does not board the vehicle within five minutes 

of the pick-up time 

If the driver arrives at the destination address and the 

rider is not available or does not take the trip 

Excessive cancellations andlor three no-shows in three 

months may result in a 30-day suspension of service. 



Page 9 Page 10 

A rider may travel with one companion for the same fare 

as the rider. A companion is not a personal care 

attendant. A companion travels with the rider for 

company, not for assistance. When calling to make a 

reservation, please advise if you will be riding with a 

companion. 

PERSONAL CARE ATTENDANT 

A Personal Care Attendant (PCA) is someone who assists 

the rider with mobility. A PCA will be allowed to ride , 

1 without charge when accompanying the eligible individual to 
[--.%yYm'. .I or from the same origin and destination. A PCA and a 
6-. -. 

fare-paying companion may both travel with you on the 

same trip. When calling to make a reservation, please 

advise if you will be riding with a PCA. 

SERVICE ANIMALS 

Riders may travel with a service animal, but pets will not 

. 
be transported. When calling to make a reservation, please 

advise if you will be accompanied by a service animal. 

Customers must only carry packages that they can handle 

alone. Packages must not occupy a seat or create a 

safety hazard. 

NOTE: Operators can only assist with carrying 

packages on and off the vehicle. 
- - --7- 

WHEELCHAIRS 
All vehicles equipped with lifts or ramps meet specifications 

under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. They 

will accommodate mobility devices up to 48" X 30" with a 

maximum weight of 600 pounds when occupied. ClasTran 

cannot transport mobility devices that exceed these 

standards or wheelchairs in poor condition. 

Please be aware that a rider's safety cannot be guaranteed 

if riders choose to remain seated in three-wheeled scooters 

or rolling walkers with a seat during transport. 

SUBSCRIPTION TRIPS 
A subscription trip is one the rider takes: 

From the same pick-up location 

To the same drop-off location 
= At the same time of day andlor 

On the same day(s) of the week 

Subscription trips are scheduled automatically. You only 

need to reserve them once unless you need to change the 

subscription. Trips can be scheduled for as long as the 

rider needs the subscription. Permanent changes to a 

subscription should be made at least one week in advance. 

The rider should specify that a particular trip on a particular 

date, not the subscription, is being cancelled. 

Please note that: 

Service is based on availability. 

Personal trips cannot be made in conjunction with 

agency trips. 



Page 1 P Page 12 

RIDER RESPONSIBILITIES 
Riders have the responsibility to: 

Treat other riders, drivers, and ClasTran staff with courtesy 
and respect. 
Read all sections of the Handbook. 
Make reservations at least one day in advance. 
Cancel trips two hours in advance. 
Provide entry if the pick-up address is located inside a 
gated community or other place with special access. 
Call to report if ClasTran has not arrived by 15-minutes 
after your scheduled pick-up time. 
Pay the correct fare at the time of service. Drivers do not 

make change. You will not be transported If correct fare 

is not provlded. 
Wear seatbelts. Failure to do so may result in termination 

of transportation. 
Be at pick-up location on time. Board the vehicle within 
five minutes of the pick-up time. Sufficient time will be 
provided for the rider to board and exit the vehicle. If 

additional time is required, the driver may ask the rider to 
use the lift in order to keep a timely schedule. 
Insure that mobility aids are in standard operating 

condition. 
Maintain acceptable standards of personal hygiene. 
Board the vehicle with packages you can carry alone. 
Packages must not occupy a seat or create a safety 

hazard. 
Provide updates of address changes, telephone numbers, 

emergency contact, change in physical condition or 
equi~ment used, etc. .- - 

DRIVER RESPONSIBILITIES 
Drivers have the responsibility to: 

Treat riders, ClasTran staff, and the general public with 

courtesy and respect. 

Wear ID badge issued by ClasTran at all times and 

present a neat, professional appearance. 

Ensure safe drop-off of riders, which includes, at a 

minimum, visually watching the rider until helshe has 

safely entered the door. In some cases this may also 

include contacting dispatch to make sure that an 

attendant is available to meet a rider needing 

assistance from the curb to the door. 

Use the incidentlaccident form to report concerns that 

may cause an unsafe, unsanitary, or unpleasant trip for 

you or others. 
= Stay within the "line-of-sightn of the vehicle. 

Maintain the route schedule for the convenience of all 

riders. 

Assist* riders when entering and exiting the vehicle. 

Report incidents and accidents to ClasTran 

immediately. The dispatcher will call 91 1 if necessary. 

Obey all traffic laws and posted speed limits. 

*Assistance includes, but is not limited to: 

Offering riders a steady arm or other appropriate 

guidance when entering and exiting the vehicle 

Helping riders in wheelchairs to maneuver on standard 

vehicle ramps, lifts and insuring that wheelchairs are in 

standard operating condition 

. . . . . . . . .. . . . -. .I 



Page 13 Page 14 

Helping riders carry no more than two grocery bags or 

similar sited packages on and off the vehicle 

Enter a rider's residence 

Perform any personal care for riders, including but not 

limited to assisting riders with getting dressed 

Lift or carry riders 

Assist riders or mobility devices up or down steps 

Fuel the vehicle with riders on board 

Accept tips or gratuities 

Use personal cell phones or engage in texting while the 

vehicle is in motion 

Drop off a rider at an alternate location at the request 

of the rider, parentlguardian, or agency representative. 

The rider, parentlguardian, or agency representative 

must contact ClasTran to make such changes. 

**If a rider requires assistance from the curb to the door 
and does not have a family member or  caregiver 
available to assist them, they can sign a waiver releasing 
ClasTran of any liability. The driver can then assist 
them to the door. This waiver is only intended for those 
riders that have no other means of getting inside their 
residence and not as a means of convenience. To receive 
a waiver you can ask your driver, call the ClasTran 
office at 205-325-8787 or log on to www.clastran.com to 
obtain it. 

---<. - -.. .-, .. - 
.. . . 

-'- __ 
CAUSES FOR SUSPENSION OF SERVICE 
Misusing the system can result in suspension of service. 

The following misuses could lead to suspension. This list 
is not comprehensive. 

1. Excessive CanceIlations, No-Shows, andlor Late 

Cancellations 

Excessive cancellations, no-shows, andlor late 

cancellations delay the vehicle and deny opportunities 

for others to ride. 

2. Disruptive or Abusive Behavior 

Disruptive or abusive behavior annoys and can 

endanger others. This behavior includes, but is not 

limited to: - Intimidation or threats of physical harm 

Verbal abuse 

Unlawful harassment, including unwelcome verbat, 

nonverbal, or physical behavior having sexual or 

racial connotations 

Unauthorized use of vehicle equipment 

Smoking on vehicles 

Eating or drinking without medical necessity 

Refusing to remain seated with seatbelts firmly 

secured 

- Defacing equipment 

Refusing to comply with the requirements may result in 

permanent discontinuation of service. 



Page 15 Page 16 

SUSPENSION PROCESS 
If a rider is reported or observed to be abusing the service 

in any way, including but not limited to those ways 

mentioned under Causes for Suspension of Service, 
ClasTran will contact the rider to investigate. If the rider's 

behavior or use of the service is determined to be in 

violation of ClasTran operational and safety policies, the 

rider will receive a written notice of service suspension that 

explains the reason(s) for the suspension. 

Suspensions will not be imposed for circumstances that are 

beyond a rider's control. Examples of situations not within 

the rider's control are: 

A sudden personal or weather emergency or traffic 

delay 

Sudden or worsening illness - Late arrival of the ClasTran vehicle - A driver who does not provide appropriate assistance 

Disruptive behavior caused by a disability 

If the investigation reveals a rider's disruptive behavior is 

due to a disability and beyond hislher control, seruice may 

not be suspended. However, ClasTran may require the 

rider to travel with a companion to help control hislher 

behavior and prevent harm to self or others. If a 

companion cannot help control the behavior and a safety or 

health hazard continues to exist, service may be 

discontinued. 

In order to appeal a decision for suspension, ClasTran must 

receive a written request to appeal. The operations 

manager will review the appeal and notify rider of the 

outcome by telephone or mail, within seven working days 

after receipt of the written request for appeal. Appeals 
must be forwarded to: 

ClasTran Appeals 

PO Box 10386 

Birmingham, AL 35202-0386 

rabel@clastran.com 
If the rider does not agree with the decision of the 

operations manager, the rider may request a review by 

ClasTran's Contracts and Standards Committee. 

Transportation will not be provlded during the appeal 

process 

If you would like to make a comment, suggestion, or 

complaint, please contact us Monday through Friday 

between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 

Email: rabel@clastran.com 

Phone: 205-325-8787 

Fax: 205-325-8788 

TDD: 205-325-81 29 

Toll Free: 877-826-7876 

U.S. Mail: PO Box 10386 

Birmingham, AL 35202-0386 
r + I 



Page 17 

ClasTran Complaint Procedures 

During the normal course of providing service to the 

community, it is possible that passengers andlor members 

of the public will desire to lodge complaints about the 

quality of transit service offered or the manner in which 

transit service is delivered. Every effort will be made to 

handle these issues quickly, courteously and fairly. All 

employees are reminded that everyone in the community 

has the right to express concerns about transit operations. 

One should also remember that the mere allegation of 

impropriety, however, does not establish proof that a 

violation has occurred. Every effort will be made to 

address and resolve customer complaints as quickly as 

possible but certainly within fifteen (15) business days. 

Specifically, a "~omplaint'~ is an allegation by a member of 

the public that there has been a specific violation, 

misinterpretation, or inappropriate act by a member of 

ClasTran. Vague or general charges of "unfairness" that are 

not substantiated by facts will not be processed through the 

dispute resolution system. 

All complaints will be referred to Richard Abel, Operations 

Manager and Barbara Roberson, Operations Supervisor for 

investigation and resolution. Complaints specifically alleging 

inappropriate behavior by management personnel of CIasTran 

will be referred to Fenn Church, Executive Director. Escalated 

complaints will be referred to the Board Chairman of 

ClasTran. The following steps are established to provide a 

framework for handling these issues. 
a- 

Page 18 - 
ClasTran Com plaint Procedures (continued) 

Dispute Resolution System 

Step One - The complaint is received by the 

Operations Manager & Supervisor. Sufficient 

information is collected to allow an investigation. 

Upon receiving the complaint, ClasTran will contact 

the issuer for further details. 

Step Two - The details will be investigated and 

presented to the Executive Director for development oi 

additional facts, to identify (where possible) the 

employee in question and determine what actually 

occurred. 

Step Three - If the complaint has merit, the Executive 

Director of ClasTran will counsel the appropriate 

employee and take the appropriate progressive 

disciplinary steps. 

Step Four - Where applicable the Executive Director 

of ClasTran will respond to the individual filing the 

complaint within fifteen (15) business days. 

Depending on the desires of the individual and the 

nature of the complaint, this response may be either 

a telephone call (sufficiently documented) or a written 

response. 

Step Five - For any egregious complaint the 

Executive Director of ClasTran will advise the Board 

Chairman of ClasTran. A joint decision may be made 

to accelerate the disciplinary process or take other 

extraordinary actions to resolve the complaint. 



Page 19 
rage LU 

ClasTran Complaint Procedures (continued) 

Step Six - If the member of the public is not satisfied 

with actions taken by ClasTran personnel or if they 

demand further action, these unresolved complaints 

will be referred to the Public Transportation Section of 

the Bureau of Multimadal Transportation, ALDOT in 

Montgomery. We will freely and promptly provide 

names, telephone numbers and addresses. 

Mr. Joe Nix 

Senior Transportation Planner 

Alabama Department of Transportation 

Bureau of Transportation Planning and 

Modal Programs 

1100 John Overton Drive 

Montgomery, Alabama 361 10 

VOICE: (334) 353-6421 

FAX: (334) 353-6451 

E-MAIL: &i@dot.state.al.u~ 

Step Seven - If the member of the public is not 

satisfied with actions taken by the state, they may 

contact the Federal Transit Administration Office of 

Civil Rights Officer in Washington, DC. We will 

freely and promptly provide names, telephone 

numbers and addresses. 

ClasTran Complaint Procedures (continued) 

Federal Transit Administration Office of Civil Rights 

Attention: Title VI Program Coordinator 

East Building, 5th Floor - TCR 

1200 New Jersey Ave., SE 

Washington, DC 20590 

Step Eight - The Executive Director of ClasTran shall 

maintain a log of Title VI complaints received. The 

log shall include the date the complaint was filed, a 

summary of the allegations; the status of the 

complaint; and actions taken in response to the 

complaint. 

The entire issue of complaint resolution, whether it is one of 

our employees or a member of the public, is one of courtesy 

and common sense. We serve the public and they have a 

right to share their concerns with us. We will handle all 

complaints courteously and will not allow ourselves to "argue" 

about the merits of any complaint. In many instances, 

individuals merely want "to be heard". We will give them that 

opportunity. 



BS - - - c ~ ~ ~ r ~ ~  Y .  

/ 

APPLEATION FOR DETERMINATlON OF ELlGlBlLlTY 
(For Applicants in the JeffersonIShelby Urbanized Areas) 

All individuals who are disabled 60 years of age and over are able to qualify for subsidized transportation in 
the urbanized areas of Jefferson and Shelby counties. Qualification must be determined through an applica- 
tion process. All information is confidential. 

Please fill out all pertinent parts of this application and return with sua~ortiner documentation to ClasTran. 

Email: awearv@clastran.com 

Fax: 205-325-8788 

U.S. Mail: ClasTran 
PO Box 10386 

For questions or information: 
205-325-8787 
877-826-7876 

awearv@clastran.com 
Between 8:00 a.m. and 900 Dam. 

Birmingham, AL 35202-0386 

A. PERSONAL INFORMATION 

Last Name: First - Name: Middle initial: 
. . 

Home - .  Phone: Mobile Phone: 

' Date of - .  Birth: 

Street Address: 

Number and Street: - 
City, State, Zip: 

Moiling Address, if different: 

Number and Street: 

City, State, Zip: 

, 

In Case of Emergency Notify: 

Name: Phone: 

Address: C i :  State: Zip: 

For office Use Only: 

El Approved 
Denied 
Incomplete 

Rev. 12/14 



I 

" 

6. AGE QUALIFICATION 

If you qualify because you are 60 years of age or over, please submit a copy of one of the following items as 
verification. 

State Driver's License U.S. Military ID 
State Identification Card Certificate of U.S. Citizenship 
Birth Certificate Permanent Resident Card 
Medicare Card Alien Registration Receipt Card 
Passport 

IF YOU ARE AGE 60 OR OVER, DO NOT FILL OUT THE NEXT SECTION OR PAGE FOUR. PLEASE PROCEED TO SECTION 
D. 

C. DISABILITY QUAUF~CATION J 
If you qualify because of a disability, please provide detailed information of your disability or condition. 

Is your disability temporary? Yes No 

If yes, please explain and provide an estimate of duration. 

Proof of disability is required in order to complete your application. You must have the Professional Verification 
form completed by a professional who can verify your condition, including but not limited to: physician, registered 
nurse, social worker, psychologist, nurse practitioner, chiropractor, occupational therapist, physician's assistant, or 
mental health professional. 

D. MOBIUTY INFORMATION I 
Please check all mobility aids that you use. 

Cane Electric Wheelchair** 
[7 White Cane 0 Manual Wheelchair 

Crutches Extra Wide Wheelchair** 
Walker [7 Powered Scooter** 
Service Animal* 17 Other (please describe) 

*If you use a service animal, please identify the type of animal and how it assists you. 

**NOTE: In order for ClasTran to provide service, wheelchairs cannot exceed 30" wide, 48" long, and 600 pounds 
when occupied, in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, subpart A. ClasTran cannot 
transport mobility devices that exceed these standards. - 



r 

E. PERSONAL CARE ATTENDANT 

Do you ever have need for someone to assist you when you travel? Yes No 

I certify that the information I have provided in this application is  true and correct. I understand that falsification of 
information may result in denial of service. I further understand that all information required herein will be 
considered confidential and will be used only by ClasTran to determine eligibility for transportation services. 

I understand that all services are curb-to-curb and that the operators wilt assist me on and off the vehicle, but not to 
the door or into a residence or building. 

I agree to comply with all guidance and instruction for riders as contained in both the Rider's Guide and Rider's 
Handbook. 

Name: (please print) 

Signature: Date: 

b 



..; -.c,$s7r a -  ki- 
PROFESSIONAL VERIFICATION 

has submitted an application for transportation services and has 
indicated that you can provide verification of his/her disability. 

This form must be completed by a currently-licensed professional who is able to certify the individual's disa- 
bility, including but not limited to: physician, registered nurse, social worker, psychologist, nurse practitioner, 
chiropractor, occupational therapist, physician's assistant, or mental health professional. Please take a 
moment to fill out this questionnaire and return to the client or ClasTran at: 

Email: awearv@clastran.com 

Fax: 205-325-8788 

U.S. Mail: ClasTran 
PO Box 10386 
Birmingham, AL 35202-0386 

I I. Please describe the above penon's disability. 

2. Is this disability temporary? 

O Yes O No 

[ 3. If yes, please indicate the estimated length of disability. 

1 4. In what capacity do you know the applicant? 

I 5. Professional Verification 1 
Signature: Date: 

Print Name: Title: 

License Title: Number: Expiration Date: 

Agency Name: Phone: 

Address: 
Please complete all sections of verification. Incomplete sections will result in delayed processing. 







JEFFE12SONCOUN'I'Y I 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

This Right rrf Wsty Bacroaclrnrc~rl Liccssc Agrccme~rl. (~lic "Agr'ccnic~il") is cntwcrl 
[his day of 201._. by I I I I~I  hclwccn tl~c City of' Mo~~nlain 
Brook, Alub:ltan, a municipitl corponrlion (hcl-ciuallcr Illc "Cily" or "l,iccnsi)~."), i t ~ i t l  

(OIVIIE~LJ d P o  r e  I + ~ I I ~ I J ) ,  u '2 ~LV .L  ?- 

(hescinnflcr indivitlu~lty or collcclivcly rcfbwncctl Ibs purposes ol [Iris Agsccti~c~il ;IS IIIC 
"Licensee"). 

Wl.IEREAS, Uc Liccnscc ~-cprcsw~ls t&~l it owns Ihc Ibllowing rcill p~.opcl.ty loca~t~l it1 

the City ill' Muunlnin Brti~~k, Jcflicrsc~~r C U ~ I I I ~ ~ ,  AI. rl I )iltllil: 

Address: ? Q  Crv-Ck, Club i1 \dcl  
Parcel ID #: O l l  9 3  DD 2001 tJfl0 
Legal Description 

(thc "Propcrly"); 

WHEREAS, lhc Propcrly sbuts ~.ight(s) of way thal is ow~~cd by lhc City and rcscrvcd 
for lhc use of IIIC gcncral public (tlre "City ROW"); 

WHEREAS, tlic Licensee desires to install rind meinlain Dcscr3ibe Pctnriiraror 
Irttnroi)c~aenr that ~tlill Encruach on Cilv ROW) F)d-,ne. el ~ h c  locntiot~ dcpictcd on thc 
attached Exhibit "A" (collectively l~ereinaflcr the "~~n~rovcrncnt"), and intcnd t h n ~  the 
Itnprovemenl will be uscd by tire occupa~~b of die Propcrly or lhcir gucsu; 

WHEREAS, part or all orllic nreu in which thc ln~prove~nenl will be ir~slallcd lies will~in 
and encroaclies upon the City Right of Way (Irereinafter, tl~c "Encronchn~enr Area"); and 

WHEREAS, subject to tcnns, collditions and ut~dcrstandirigs hcrcin, the Cily agrecs to 
grant llic Licc~~sce R 11011-CXCILISIVC, revocable license to install nnd usc tllc cncroacl~ing 
Tmprovelnenl within lhc City ROW. 



NOW, '1'Hll=1tI51;ORE:, in considcfi~tiolr of rlrc iii11t1111l C ~ V C I ~ ~ I I I I S  IIOI-citi, :llrtt O I ~ I C I -  good 
itnd valuablc considcralion, tlrc rcccipl ;wid stlilicicr~cy or wlridl is i ~ c k n o ~ l ~ t l ~ c t l .  llic pnrlics 
agrcc as follows: 

I .  'l'lic City ggnnls thc Liccnscc ;I non-cxclr~sivc, ~,evcx;rl~lc liccl~sr: lo ~ ~ l i l i . / s  (Irc Iyity 
ROW for pu~poscs rcasun;~bly rclatcd lo tlic cons~rt~ctiun. itrst;lll;t$ia~t. ilr;~itll~t~i~llcc trrbr l  trsc ol' 
iibovc-dcscribccl cncroi~cliing Impruvcmcn! wi~liin lllc Iincrt~i~clrncnl  arc:^ (tllc "I ,icc~rsc"). No 
otlicr uses ol'tfrc City ROW arc ;~i~tliori~c/stl. 

2. Thc Liccliscc ngrccs and ircknowlcdgcs c l r i~ t  Ilkis Agrcaiictil gr;uils il (a' Ilrcni) orrly ;I 

liccnsc, not any inlcrcst, lillc, ~,crnii~~icnt riglir or cstlilc. 'I'llu gritnl ~~iirrlc Irct.cuntlcr is porsotrirf lo 
ilic Liccnscc and docs not tz~n with tlrc litutl. 12~a.~lrcr, lllc I,iccl~scc irgrccs lo no1 clt~im illiy 
pclnlancnt il~tcrcsl in tlic Encroachmait Arca by cntcl*ing inlu illis Ayr~~nrunl or Ily ils ~ s c  ol'i111y 
conteniplatcd cncroact~ing Iniprovcmcnt. 

3. Thc Licctiscr agl-ccs to (a) kccp lhc E~rcra;rchmclrt  arc;^ clcan and Iirc ol'dcb~~is, 
weeds or overgrown grass, (b) milinlain tlrc ct)ntcn~pln!cd cncroncliing laiprovcmclr( in good i~l i t l  

sound condition, und (c) liol usc ~ l i c  Itncroi~climcn~  arc;^ ur ttny c ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ) i ~ c l i i t r g  I I I ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ) V C ~ I I C I I I  in il 
manner 1Iial crci~lcs ;r I~azaril or cirt~scs dirmitgc to irtry llrird persons or iltljiic~lf prol)clelics. 

4. l'hc Liccilscc i~cknowlctlg~~ thirt, in llrc cvclll I l l a t  tllc City, in d ~ c  cxcrcisc al' ils srdc 
discretion, dctc~~nincs that 11rc Liccnscc's t1iiIi7iition 01' thc 13ncrt~ircI1nia11 AI~CII ar ~lrc 
lrnprovcmcnt conflicts with City's usc ol' or 111;ras lo use I l i i~ l  Arci~, il 111iry rcvokc tlic I-iccnsc 
cffcctivc upon providing Llic Liccnscc wriclcn nolicc ii.0111 ltrc Mrryor, Ilic City Mnnngcr or the 
City's otllcr cxccutivc official. H' thc Licc~lsc is rcvakcd, tllc City, in IIIC cxcrcisc ol'its sole 
discretion, citl~cr (a) may rcqucst thal tlic Liccnscc, ill its (or thcir) cxpwisc, rclliovc ally 
encroaching Itnprovemcnt and rcstorc !lie City ItOW to a condiliu~i that is t.c:rson;rbly 
sutisfuctory to the City within thirty (30) days atlcr titc reccipl of troticc of rcvoa~lion, (1)) t r ~  
tire City's expcnsc, niay rclnovc any cncroaching Itnprovc~nctit placcd by tlic Liccnscc in tllc 
Encroachmc~lt Arca. If llrc City rcvokcs tllc Liccnsc, llic Liccnscc waives arid rclcr~scs thc Cily 
from any and all claims for cxpellses incur~crl by tlic Liccnscc ti) conslruct or tnaintniri any 
Irllprovcriicnt in the Emroachmunt Area. 

5. 'I'lrc Licetrscc may not assign or t~ansfcr this Agrcemcnt (or any benefit, tight or 
obligation hcrcundcr) to any third party witi~out advance writtct~ conscnt by thc City, wlricl~ 
conscnt shall not bc unreasonably withheld. 

6. All plans, designs and work to construct any contcmplatcd cncroaching Improvement 
shall be subjecl to sevicw and approval of tlre City's Building inspection Departlneni, or sucl~ 
other department as tlic City may designate. Furthcr, tlre Licensee ngrecs that all operations 
rclatcd to the instnllatian or maintenance of any such l~nprovemenr will comply wit11 applicable 
federal, state and local laws, ardinanccs and regulations (including but not liniitcd ro, Iiccnsc and 
permil requirements) rhet relate to those operations. 

7. The Liccnsee sl~all not pcnnit any mcclianic or materialman's lien to be filcd against 
thc City 01- concerning thc Encroachrncnt Arca by reason of any labor, scrviccs, materials or 
equipment supplied or claimed to liavc been supplied to construcl or maintain any encroaching 

2 



[mpmvcn~cnt (callcctivcly, u "l..iai"). Il'st~cll n I.ica is lilcd. tlicri llrc I.iccnwc. illicr ~lolict: ill' its 
filing, proniptly sl i i r l l  cillicr (it) cirusc tlic slllric to ho ilisclrirrp,crl by dcliosilinl; irdcill~i~lr lirnds in 
court or issuing ;I bond; or (b) i n d c n ~ ~ i ~  llic (lily t~g:~irsl iuiy lass l i c ~ i r r  iI 1.ic11 by posli~rl; 
sccurity or tt~king otllcr irciions tliirr i11.c rc:~so~l;~l>ly sill is l i t c~o~y  lo illc (!i~ y. 

8. Tllc Liccnscc, for irsclt' i ~ r l t l  on I ~ c l ~ i ~ l l '  ol' i111y OS  IS ticirs. I)c~s()I~~I~ I'CPI'CSCI~~:I~~VCS, 

'I L L I ~ I C I I ~  authorized assigns or otllcr pcrsalis or c~rlitics lli;~~ mi~y s~~ccccrl to its i~~lcr~-sl  ill Iliis AI, ' *  * 

(collcctivcly t l ~c  "Liccnscc" Tor pulposcs ol' Illis lrrovisio~i) iIgl-ccS 10 tv;rivc, rclc:isc, i ~ i r l c ~ r ~ ~ i i  ly, 
dcfcnd and lrold lri~~~mlcss tlic City, irnrl i l s  oIlicc1:5-, cmployccs, i i l ~ i c l  ~ C ~ ~ I ' C S C I ~ ~ ~ I ~ ~ V G S  (cuIIcc(~vcI~ 
for purposcs or (his provision, 1111: "City"). lir)lrr ;rlrtl i~gi~inst ;11ty c1:ritn. li;tlrilily, Ir)ss, cxllcnsc 
(ii~cluding, rcasoniiblc rrtloruey f'ccs nntl cosls ul' cnurl), tlc~ii~iritl or clctit~n asscrkd iig;~insl tlrc 
City by t11c Liccrlscc or by i111y t l i i ~ x l  11;1rty cliliillj~lg PCI'S~IIII~ ir?iury, pnlpcrly tl:1111iiyc or iirly 
otlicr loss of any kind (collcctivcly, :! "Cl i~i~~i")  rhi11 iwiscs Iiom or is in iury miuincr rclnlutl In (a) 
tile Liccnsec's use aT the 1,iccnsc y~.rulrcd hcrcitr or ~ b c  I:'ncroncIrmc~~  arc:^. or (13) ;my 
encroacliilrg I moravcmcnl l~laectl in thc C'II~ ROW. 'I'lrc scupc ul' t liis in Jc~n~ritioalicl~.r ohliga~ion 
i~lclltdes Clainis tl1a1 arc ciruscd 01. i~llcgcdly causcd in wliolc or purl hy tlic ucgligcncc ()I' lllc 
City; provided that tlic Iaiccnscc shall 1101 hc nbligiitctl Iicrcuntlc~. 10 i ~ ~ i l w n ~ i i l y  llrc ('lily Iibr 
Claims that nrc caused by llic gross ncgligcncc or willl'ul misconiluc~ ol'rlic C1iiy. 

9. IT tllc Licc~~scc rcliiuvcs ur subs~nntitllly tiiotiiIics ;In cnct'oi~clring l~nprovcmc~~l :11'Lcr 
tllis Agrcemc~il is excculcd9 ii shall 1101 rcl~lt~cc or conslrucl tinollicr or rlil'l'c~~clnl Imj~rovcmcnl or 
slructurc in tllc City ROW willlout t~tlvi\~lcc appr~~v i~ l  fi-om tlic City; plrlvitlctl Ihat nothing Ircl.cin 
sball prohibit rhc Licc~rscc fir3111 lncrin~ain~ng, repairing or r.cIirr\~ishing nny cncrocrclling 
Impruvcment cwi tc~riplntcd by this Ayrccmcnt. 

10. Al l  ~ioticcs illat nrny bc rcquircd to bc yivc~t hcrcuntlcr sliull bc ctccn~cd lo litrvc hccn 
properly given if in wriliiiy t111d (n) if p~rso~ i i~ l l y  d~livcrcd, or (11) SCIII citllcr by reyistcrcd or 
ca-tified mail, postngc prcpaid, and ilddrcsscd as tbllows, or by ~i:riionolly rccognizcd ovamight 
courier to tlie following acldrcss (or suclr otltcr nddrcss ns ;I peny III~IY dcsig1iaIc ill writing): 

To the City: 
City of Mounraiu Brook, Alabamu 
Attcnkion: City Manager 
56 Church Strcct 
Mountain Brook, AL 352 13 

To tlic Licensee: 
Ttby Xhonc- 
LIT 7," -4rr E rub bb.L 
PA!.. \7$ " , AL 35.21.3 

Notices shall be deemed given upon rcccipt or refusal o f  delive~y. 

I 1. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

(a) This Agreement may not be atncndcd or modificd unless all parlies executc a writing 
that is sibwed by their duly autt~nrized representalivcs. 

3 



(b) Thc rnilurc ol'tlrc Cily Io cnli)rcr! ilIIy id' tlrc ~cr~ns, co~itlitio~rs cw provisitwis 01' Illis 
Agrcc~ncnt sllall nut bc co~rstrt~utl its ;I wiiivcr ot ' i ~s  rig111 lo suhsuclrrcnrly conipcl culi~rcc~)rcnl ol- 
that or any othcr tcnn. condition or prc)vision Iicrcin. 'I11c rigllis. bcndits ;rncl ohligalions ulrr lei- 
chis Agrcctncrr~ mily hc wi~ivcrl only in ii wri~ing sig~ruil Ity IIIC ~,i~rtics. 

(c) This Agrcancul. ;md tlic condiliut~s. tcrtns :rntl ~~rovisknis Ircl-cis tlo rtol crcidc. irntl 
arc not intcndcd lo rrcilic or conl'cr ;my bcnclil la lury tllirtl p:lrl y. 

(c) This Agrcc~~cnl  conl;rius Ihc cort~plclc :rg~.ccriic~il oftlrc ~ j i ~ r ~ i c s  concclminy lhc sirl)jcct 
rnaltcr hcrcin. Any prior ncgalii~tian, :rgrccmcnt t,tm rrtrdcr.sIir~rtlir~g, ~ I ~ c l l i c r  ~ t ' i t l  or wril1c11. 
concerning tllc niarlcrs clddrcsscd hcrcin is srrpcrscclcd a~rrl ol'no c k c l  u~~lcss cxp~.csscil Ircrcin. 

(d) This Agrccn~cnl nlily be signal it1 onc or III~I*~ ajtlntapiltrs, ci~cll ul' wl~iclr stii~ll hc 
dccnied an origi~ial irrlrl ill1 ol' whiclr logcthcl- sh;rll cons~i~ri~c onc ilncl lhc si~nlc i~grccnrcnt. 
Sig~iat~lrc pngcs Itlay bc t~.ilns~nillutl by fi~csimilc or ollrctB lilrm of' dcctronic t~~crnsn~issior~. ttnd 
any sipmturc so t~.ansmittc.d will bc given rllc s:1111c WITC itntl ci'liicl iIs itn urigirrr~l sigu;~!urc 

(e) If rcqucstcd by the City, tl~c 1,iccnscc ~I1ir11 wcord n 1Wly-cxcairctl li~mt 01' Illis 
Agreement in the rc i~ l  propcrry I~LT~II*~~~ or the P~.ob:rlc Cowl Ibr Jcllkrson Co~rt~ty. 

IN WITNESS WIIEREOP, lhc ptwticslrirvc cilusccl lllis Ayrccmcnl lo hc cxccu~ctl un 
thc date hcreinabovc sc~ lilrll~. 

ATTEST: 

City Clcrk 

ClTY 01; MOUN'I'AI N l?R001~, Al,Al3AhlA 

By: 
Msyor 

LICENSEE (if inclividunl) 

LICENSEE (if individual) 

LICENSEE (if entity) 

Nnmc of Entity 
By: 



STATE OF AI.ABAMA ) (kiw i l v ~  if/.itpt!~:.viv* i.v l~ti / ivi~hitt /)  
COUNTY 01: JlZPI:ISRSON ) 

I, tl~c iuldcrsiyncil iIulllwity, tr Nula~y l'uhlic tl~ily cotl~tnissit~nctl in illid fibr Illc (?otl~ity :t~itl 
Stntc nfolrseid, Irurcby curlil'y rlbnr w11t)sc I~:IOIC is 
signed to tllc To~cgoir~g inslt-~,lna~l, iuitl wllo is  k~!aw~~ lo Iiic. ;~cl;~~t~wlctl~cd I ~ u t i l r t  IIIC (HI [his tli~y 
th:il, bcing info~iiicd tfllic cor~lc~~ts ol'llrc i~~stl .~~~iic~tf.  I~cIslir? L'XCCIIIC~I S;IJIIC vt~l~~trli~rily. 

STATE OF ALABARW ) (IGw I/stl ff/.itv?t~,vi!~' i~ J : ~ t l i ~ * I ~ I ~ ~ t t l )  
COUNTY 01; 1J151:1;EltSON ) 

I, thc tintlcrsigncrl iw~lh~lily, it Norirry I't~blic. dr~ly cani~iiissior~cd in ;urrl li)v tllc Cor~~rry iurtl  

Statc aforcsaicl, l~crcby cciiiry 1l1;rl wl~osc I I ~ I I ~ C  is 
signcd to tlic fo'ccgoil~g ins!rtriicn~, i11r1 who is I;~low~i to ~nc, ;~cLnowlcdycd llclilrc IIIC on  rllis dity 
thai, bcing it~fonncd urt11c colltcrlts t~l'lhc i n s ~ r u ~ ~ ~ c ~ i ~ ,  lrclsltr! cxcc\~tcrl S;IIIIC vrllunturily. 

--- - -.-- --. - - -- -- -. . . 
NOTARY I'URLICI 
My Conirnissiun cxpircs;, - . .  

STATE OF ALABAMA ) ( f i r  Usc ifLic*ctrsac C Ltirri(19 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) 

I, tfic undr~siyncd ~luthority, a Nolery Public duty comnrissiot~cd in itlld Iblm tlic County ant1 
Stale oforcsairi, hcrcby ccrlify ~hnt wllasc nnmc ns 

of is signed to ~ l w  
foregoing i~~strumcnt, ntld wl~o is knaw~l to nlc, nckt~owlctlycd hcforc 111c on h i s  day hat, bcirly 
infomcd of lhc conccnts of tllc instrument, I~clshc as sucl~ officcr and wit11 full uuthority, cxccutcd 
salile voluntmrily for nnd ns the 8CI of said entity. 

Givcn under niy hand and officiill seal this day of ,20-. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Comn~ission expires: 



EXHIBIT A - DEPICTION OF ENCROACHMENT AREA 



COUNTRY CLUB BOULEVARD 
-7 



Tt9f C t i A l 4 a F R  FOR 4 i  GIO:rAL PTrOjPEnlTY 

I Ion. Lawrcncc Odcn 
Mayor 
City o f  Mountah Brook 
P 0 Box 130009 
Bigham, At 35213 

Dcar Mayor Oda: 

Thank you far ynur past support of thc B ~ g h a m  Busincss Allinncc This past ycar, thc cconomy of thc 
Birmingham rcgian continucd to pow, and with your invcstmcnt, our scvcn-county mcm arca cnjoycd mothrr 
mcaniryfulj pmductivr ymr. 

Our rcsulm tcll thc story. In just rhc past 6vc ycurs, thc nurnbct of jobs nnnounecd locally in ncw and expanding 
industries tods morc than 12,500 and additional indkmt jobs ccutcd as a rcsult of thosc job announccmma tods 
anothcr 12,000. Eva morc cncour;lgifig is thc growth in capital invcsuncnt - the dollars that flowcd into thc e o n .  
Thc invcstmmt numb= now cxcccdr $2 billion, again in just thc past 6vc years. Thcrc is cxdtcmcnt in thc air as 
mom than 30 pmjm takc shape in downtown Binglrarn and thc surrounding areas. 

In addition, national mc& oudcer arc buzzing about our region. Mawto nmntly namcd Birmingham as Amcliica's 
Bcst Citp; Foh~placcd Bhniqham at thc top o f  its lise for Most Alfordablc Citics to livc and on its Top 10 IQappicst 
Citics to Work; ZAGAT named B i i g h n m  thc #I Nmt I-Iot Food City in America; and Brbomiq Bxdws namcd 
Bigham One of Six Citics whcrc Millcnnials can Afford m Pny Rent Thcsc arc cxdcnc s i p  that out cconomy 
is continuing to improvc and wc look fonvacd to morc success. 

It is indccd gratifying to rcflcct on thc BirnJngham Bwincss Akncc's solid propm of work and to know that wc 
arc making a diff~nctz With a focus on cconomic dcvclapmcne, imagc cnhanccmmt and workforce dcvclopmmt, 
thc Biucprint Bkmingham rcgiod growth plan condnucs to bc psiavdy rcccivcd and to pnaatc mculiryful rcsults. 
We hnvc thc d&t plan in placc and our pathway to prosperity is dcar. Thank you for thc irnpownt pan you play in 
moving Birminghm and Akibama fonnrprd m w d  a v a y  btighc Funuc 

I mdose w i h  LhiD Icncr an invoicc rcflccting what I hopc will bc your continucd investment support for 2015. Wc 
nccd you to hdp us grow our community and continue to makc it a p a t  phec to live. 



birminghambusinessaItiance 
TdE CFLAMBER FOR R E 3  O I A t  PROSPERItY 

Birmingham Business Alliance ' D 
SO5 20th Street North Suite 200 
Birmingham, AL 35203 

City of Mountaln Btodc 
P 0 Box 130009 
Birmingham, A 1  35213 

INVOICE 

Pay your dues online at http:/~.blrmlnghambuslnessalllance~com. 
Federal Tax Id#26-4629738 

The BBA estimates that 90% of your Investment may be deductible as a business expense. 
For advlce on all tax matters, please consult your tax advisor or an attorney. 

Amount 
5,000.00 

5,000.00 

0.00 

5,000.00 

B B A Investment 
ivomoi5 t~ 1wv2016 

By submitting payment, I afilrm my acceptance and endorsement of the mission and 
objectives of the Btrmingham 0usIne.s Alliance, whlch indude the prornotlon of economic 

development, buslness growth and buslness retention activity wlthln the Birmingham region 

armlqham Burlncso Alllanu? 505 2Otb Street Nor& S u b  200 Blrrnlngham, AL 35203 
Phone: (205)324-2100 Fax: (205)324-2560 

1 .OO 5,000.00 

T a d  

Amt PJd 

Balance Due 


	2015-Nov-9 Pre-meeting Agenda
	1.   South Brookwood Road
	2.   Early retirement window
	3.   ClasTran
	4.  Montevallo Rd parking encroachment
	5.   Bham Business Alliance update



